
 
 
 
 
 
 

13 April 2005 
 
To: Chairman – Councillor RF Bryant 
 Vice-Chairman – Councillor  Mrs CAED Murfitt 
 All Members of the Council 
 
Dear Councillor 
 
You are invited to attend a special meeting of COUNCIL, which will be held in COUNCIL 
CHAMBER at South Cambridgeshire Hall on THURSDAY, 21 APRIL 2005 at 9.30 a.m. 
 
Yours faithfully 
GJ HARLOCK 
Finance and Resources Director 
 

 
AGENDA 

PAGES 
1. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 To receive any declarations of interest from Members on matters arising 

in this agenda. 
 

   
2. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING  1 - 4 
 To authorise the Chairman to sign the Minutes of the meeting held on 11th 

February 2005 as a correct record. 
 

   
3. LDF - CAMBRIDGE SOUTHERN FRINGE      (DRAFT AREA ACTION 

PLAN ATTACHED AS A SEPARATE DOCUMENT) 
 5 - 14 

 
 

 South Cambridgeshire Hall 
Cambourne Business Park 
Cambourne 
Cambridge 
CB3 6EA 

t: 08450 450 500 
f: 01954 713149 
dx: DX 729500 Cambridge 15 
minicom: 01480 376743 
www.scambs.gov.uk 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

At a special meeting of the Council held on 
Friday, 11 February 2005 at 9.30 a.m. 

 
PRESENT:  Councillor RF Bryant – Chairman 
  Councillor Mrs CAED Murfitt – Vice-Chairman 

 
Councillors: RE Barrett, JD Batchelor, BR Burling, NN Cathcart, Mrs SJO Doggett, 

Mrs A Elsby, R Hall, Dr SA Harangozo, Mrs SA Hatton, Dr JA Heap, 
Mrs EM Heazell, JA Hockney, Mrs CA Hunt, Mrs HF Kember, SGM Kindersley, 
RMA Manning, RB Martlew, MJ Mason, DC McCraith, CR Nightingale, 
Dr JPR Orme, Mrs DP Roberts, NJ Scarr, Mrs HM Smith, Mrs DSK Spink MBE, 
RT Summerfield, JF Williams, Dr JR Williamson and NIC Wright 

  
Mr Glen Richardson and Councillor Jenny Bailey from Cambridge City Council attended the 
meeting by invitation. 

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Dr DR Bard, JP Chatfield, SM Edwards, 
Mrs JM Healey, MP Howell, DH Morgan, Mrs JA Muncey, EJ Pateman, JA Quinlan, A Riley, 
J Shepperson, Mrs GJ Smith, JH Stewart, Dr SEK van de Ven, Mrs BE Waters and 
TJ Wotherspoon. 

 
1. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
 Lesley Dickinson, Landscape and Design Officer, declared a personal interest as a 

resident of Trumpington potentially affected by the proposed link road to Addenbrookes 
Hospital, Cambridge. 
 
Councillor R Hall declared a personal interest because his wife and daughter work at 
Addenbrookes Hospital, Cambridge. 
 
Councillor Mrs EM Heazell declared a personal interest because her husband works at 
Addenbrookes Hospital, Cambridge.  

  
2. LDF - CAMBRIDGE SOUTHERN FRINGE (RESULTS OF PUBLIC PARTICIPATION) 
 
 The Planning Policy Manager presented a detailed report informing Members about the 

results of the public participation on the Preferred Options Report for the Cambridge 
Southern Fringe Area Action Plan. 
 
The report identified the key issues raised and recommended the general approach to 
be taken in drafting the document for submission to the Secretary of State.    
 
Members noted that, while the bulk of development along the Cambridge Southern 
Fringe would fall within the administrative area of Cambridge City Council, there was a 
significant opportunity for South Cambridgeshire District Council to enhance the Green 
Belt by developing the Brownfield site formerly occupied by Monsanto.  It was also 
important to protect the city edge, and ecological corridors such as the River Cam. 
 
Members identified the following issues as important: 
 

•  The need clearly to identify development parameters and to agree, with the 
developers, on a scheme that would achieve landscape enhancements either side 
of the M11 in an area where the Council could not require such improvements to 

Agenda Item 2Page 1



Council - Local Development Framework (LDF) Special Meeting Friday, 11 February 2005 

 

be made without development taking place.  Members noted that this would entail 
taking some additional land out of the Green Belt. 

•  The likely increase in the amount of traffic along the A10.  In the view of one 
Member, the success of the proposed new link road to Addenbrookes would 
depend on the amount and cost of parking available at the Hospital site.  If such 
provision was inadequate, then there was a possibility that the extra traffic would 
go through Great Shelford village to the Babraham Park and Ride site.  To this 
end, the link road should be completed and in use prior to any other major 
development being undertaken along the Southern Fringe. 

•  Protection of views, including that of Trumpington church. 
•  Location of the Haul roads for Clay Farm, Showground and Addenbrookes all of 

which lie within Cambridge City. 
 
On the second point, the Planning Policy Manager indicated that Cambridgeshire County 
Council and Cambridge City Council were exploring options for using alternative 
accesses until the new link road had been completed.  Although the Southern Fringe 
represented the least complex and controversial element of the proposed Local 
Development Framework, it was essential that rapid progress be made in order that the 
required major increase in development could be met.   
 
A Member expressed concern that the current proposal for Trumpington West was 
“identical” to the one previously rejected by the District Council.  He suspected that there 
might be a temptation to accept the developers’ proposals simply because they were 
now offering significant Green Belt enhancements.  The Planning Policy Manager 
explained that further public participation would be conducted in June 2005, and 
representations then dealt with by the Inspector. 
 
The Planning Policy Manager stated that an important element in progressing this 
development would be to draw up, and enforce, an appropriate Masterplan, which would 
address details such as views, height of buildings and the use of perspective in using 
landscaping to minimise any adverse impact of development.   
 
Members were concerned that infrastructure should be in place prior to the 
commencement of any development.  They requested officers to convey this view to 
Cambridgeshire County Council in its capacity as Local Highways Authority. 
 
Representatives from Cambridge City Council commented that: 
 

•  The Southern Fringe was a sustainable site in the context of public transport 
•  Traffic impact would be acceptable 
•  The site was large enough to be able to accommodate a lot of its own 

construction traffic 
•  The development of the Cambridge Southern Fringe had the backing of 

Cambridge City Council 
•  The partner Councils had already agreed to 2 ½ storey buildings being on the 

development edge, with a four-storey “feature” building being located so as to 
face the M11 motorway. 

 
Members raised the following concerns: 
 

•  Access 
•  Transport and traffic, particularly along the A10 
•  The apparent tendency for landscaping to follow and, perhaps, conflict with the 

proposed route of the Guided Bus 

Page 2



Council - Local Development Framework (LDF) Special Meeting Friday, 11 February 2005 

 

•  Traffic modelling   
•  Protection of the quality of life within villages in South Cambridgeshire potentially 

affected by this proposal 
•  Land levels 
•  Protection of views 
•  Aesthetic considerations in defining the development edge 

 
The Planning Policy Manager reiterated the Council’s view that, regardless of whether or 
not the Guided Busway was in operation by 2007, Trumpington nevertheless 
represented the most sustainable option for development of this type.  In the context of 
the Government’s requirement for housing along the M11 corridor, the only viable 
alternative to Trumpington would be to distribute the proposed development there 
among the various South Cambridgeshire villages in that corridor.  The District Council 
was seeking to minimise any adverse impact of development.  He reminded Members 
that the Green Belt around Cambridge served two purposes, namely to protect the 
character of the city, and also its setting.  By allowing a strategic release of Green Belt 
land to the north-west, south and east of Cambridge, it would be possible to construct 
20,000 homes on the edge of the city without damaging its character.  The alternative 
was to build those homes further away from Cambridge but, because the bulk of 
employment opportunities were in the city, this would have the serious negative traffic 
impact that members feared most.    
 
Following further debate on a number of points arising from the report, it was 
RESOLVED that 
 
the recommendations set out in the report from the Director of Development Services, 
and Appendix 1 be endorsed as the basis for developing the policies to be set out in the 
Cambridge Southern Fringe Area Action Plan, subject to  
 
1. CSF34 (Noise) – Preferred Approach being expanded to cover noise mitigation 

from motorways and other roads, and the issue of air quality.  
 

2. The Link road to Addenbrookes Hospital being completed and in use prior to any 
further development commencing on the Cambridge Southern Fringe, members 
having been advised that 90% of the development in the Cambridge Southern 
Fringe lies within Cambridge City). 
 

3. The land either side of the M11 being included in the landscape enhancement 
scheme and made accessible to the public 
 

4. A review of Public Rights of Way in the area 
 

Council gave the Director of Development Services delegated authority to make any 
minor editing changes necessary to the responses set out in Appendix 1, with any which 
involve a material change being delegated to the Planning and Economic Development 
Portfolio Holder.  
 
Council would receive this draft AAP at the special meeting arranged for 8

th 
April 2005. 

  
  

The Meeting ended at 1.04 p.m. 
 

 

Page 3



Page 4

This page is intentionally left blank



SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

  
REPORT TO: Council 21st April 2005
AUTHOR: Director of Development Services 

 
 

SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE LOCAL DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK: 
 CAMBRIDGE SOUTHERN FRINGE AREA ACTION PLAN: 

DRAFT PLAN 
 
 

Purpose 
 
1. This meeting is a working meeting to consider the emerging content of the draft 

Cambridge Southern Fringe Area Action Plan.  A final version will be brought back to 
Members at the Council meeting of 9th May, to determine the plan for publication.  
Members are reminded to bring to the meeting the Cambridge Southern Fringe 
Preferred Options Report and the Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report, both 
published in October 2004. 

 
Effect on Corporate Objectives 

 
High quality, 
accessible, value for 
money services 
Quality village life 
A sustainable future 

2. .

 
A better future 
through Partnerships 

• Assist the Council’s objectives to deliver quality 
accessible development in the district 

• Include the provision of affordable housing and the 
effective delivery of sustainable development in the 
Cambridge Southern Fringe and development of 
sustainable communities 

• Assist the delivery of the Community Strategy 
• Be used by Cambridgeshire Horizons (formerly the 

Infrastructure Partnership) to help the early and 
sustained development of the necessary services and 
infrastructure. 

 
Background 

 
3. The Cambridge Southern Fringe Area Action Plan (AAP) is being prepared to 

address the issues in South Cambridgeshire for development proposed at 
Trumpington West (the Monsanto site) in both Councils’ areas and those arising from 
nearby major development proposed in Cambridge City Council’s area and south 
east of Trumpington and at Addenbrooke’s.  

   
4. A Preferred Options Report was published on 1st October 2004. Public participation 

on the matters raised took place over a six-week period ending on 12th November. 
Some 5,500 representations to all the Preferred Options Reports and Studies were 
received in total, of which around 240 related to the Southern Fringe. 

 
5. Council met on 11th February to consider the results of the public participation on the 

Preferred Options Reports, to identify the key issues raised and determine the 
general approach to be taken in drafting the document to be published.  

 
6. The Minutes of the meeting of Council of 11th February 2005 are attached. 
 

Agenda Item 3Page 5



7. The AAP can only cover the relevant area in South Cambridgeshire but has to have 
regard to the proposals and policies of the Cambridge Local Plan which is scheduled 
for public inquiry for July 2005. That Local Plan identifies areas to the east (Clay 
Farm), south-east (Royal Showground/Glebe Farm) and west (Monsanto) of 
Trumpington and to the south and west of Addenbrooke’s Hospital (including the Bell 
School site), for major growth as urban extensions to Cambridge. 
 
Considerations 

 
8. A meeting of Council on 9th May is programmed to deal with any amendments which 

need to be considered as a result of any of the previous meetings and taking account 
of the consultants report on Strategic Environmental Assessment / Sustainability 
Appraisal and agree the final plan for publication (20th May has also been reserved as 
a fall-back position if required).  

 
The Draft Are Action Plan 
 

9. The Draft Plan has the following format: 
 
Part A. Introduction 
Part B. Vision and Development Principles 
Part C. The Site of Trumpington West and the Southern Setting of Cambridge 

C1 The Site for Trumpington West 
C2 The Setting of the Cambridge Southern Fringe 
C3 Enhancing Landscape, Biodiversity, Recreation and Public 

Access in the Cambridge Southern Fringe 
Part D. Trumpington West  

  D1 The Structure of Trumpington 
  D2 Housing 
  D3 Employment 

D4 Community facilities, leisure, art and culture including 
community development 

D5 Transport 
D6 Landscape 
D7 Biodiversity 
D8 Archaeology and Heritage 
D9 Recreation 
D10 Drainage and Water 
D11 Telecommunications 
D12 An Exemplar in Sustainability 
D13 Waste 

Part E. Delivering Cambridge Southern Fringe 
   E1 Phasing and Implementation 
   E2 Planning Obligations 

Glossary 
Proposals Map 
Concept Plan 

 

Page 6



Approach to drafting the Draft Cambridge Southern Fringe Area Action Plan 
 
10. Members provided a clear steer on the policy direction to be incorporated in the Area 

Action Plan at the Council meeting on 8th April, when considering the representations 
received as a result of public participation on the Preferred Options Report.   

 
11. The Preferred Options Report focused on key issues for the Area Action Plan and 

issues where there were choices to be made on the policy direction. They did not 
cover all issues to be included in the Area Action Plan.  For example, there are a 
number of issues that are consistent with the Structure Plan and PPGs and should be 
included in the Area Action Plan.  In addition, any revisions to Government guidance 
published after the Preferred Options Reports have been prepared have been taken 
into account in drafting of the Area Action Plan.  The Major Projects Team has also 
provided advice on the deliverability of policies. 

 
Sustainability Appraisal / Strategic Environmental Assessment  

 
12. Under the new system of plan making, a key aspect to the preparation of plans is the 

use of Sustainability Appraisal and Strategic Environmental Assessment (SA / SEA) 
to help test evolving options and policies and ensure that the most sustainable are 
pursued.  It also provides valuable information for those considering policies through 
the participation process, enabling them to make an informed decision on their 
representations. 

 
13. A Scoping Report was prepared by the Council, ahead of the preferred options 

reports to identify relevant sustainability issues in the District, develop sustainability 
objectives, decision-making criteria and indicators against which to test the plan.  This 
report has already been subject to consultation with statutory bodies and also wider 
public participation at the preferred options stage, and Members agreed a set of 
changes to it at the Council Meeting of 20th January 2005. The Cambridge Southern 
Fringe Preferred Options report included an initial sustainability appraisal. 

 
14. The Draft Area Action Plan will be subjected to full SA / SEA appraisal by 

independent consultants, following the methodology approved in the Scoping Report.  
The sustainability assessment will include an appraisal matrix for each policy, 
detailing how it scores against the sustainability objectives developed through the 
Scoping Report.  Testing will include consideration of potential short, medium and 
long term effects, secondary, cumulative and synergistic effects.  

 
15. The Final Sustainability Report (incorporating the Environmental Report required by 

SEA Regulations) will be a complete report, explaining the process, and also 
including a publicly accessible summary.  This will be put before Members at the 
Council meeting of 9th May together with any changes proposed to the Area Action 
Plan as a result of the appraisal, when Council will be invited to agree the Area Action 
Plan which should go forward for publication. 

 

Page 7



The Main Points in the Draft Plan 
 

Part A:  INTRODUCTION  
 
16. This sets out an introduction to the Area Action Plan, explaining its content, form and 

status, the preparation process, and links to other documents such as the Community 
Strategy.  The Introduction also sets out the process for public involvement following 
submission to the Secretary of State. 

 
17. The full extent of the Area Action Plan is set out in the Introduction which identifies 

the site for the new neighbourhood of Trumpington West and identifies the need for 
landscape, biodiversity and access proposals for the countryside adjoining 
development areas at Trumpington East and Addenbrooke’s Hospital where 
development will take place within Cambridge.  

 
18. The Core Strategy includes policies which are also relevant to the Southern Fringe 

but they are not repeated in the Area Action Plan but a reference to those policies is 
often included.  The two documents must be read together. 

 
Part B: VISION AND DEVELOPMENT PRINCIPLES 

 
19. The Vision encapsulates the simple vision for the development of Trumpington West 

as a high quality urban extension to Cambridge and the securing of complementary 
landscape character, biodiversity and public access enhancements in the countryside 
which will protect and enhance the setting of Cambridge in the entire Southern Fringe 
(CSF/1).  The individual components of the vision which were listed in the Preferred 
Options Report have been included in a separate Development Principles policy 
(CSF/2) in Part B or for those aspects of the vision which are relevant to the physical 
disposition of uses within the development, incorporated into a new Structural Policy 
in Part D.  The Development Principles in Policy CSF/2 set out overarching principles 
which will be relied upon to guide the interpretation of the subsequent detailed 
policies and proposals. 

  
Part C: THE SITE OF TRUMPINGTON WEST AND THE SOUTHERN SETTING OF 
CAMBRIDGE 

 
20. This part of the plan defines the extent of the Cambridge Southern Fringe, including 

that for the development of the new neighbourhood of Trumpington West amounting 
to 15.5 ha within South Cambs (CSF/3), the definition of new boundaries for the 
Cambridge Green Belt (CSF/4) and the Countryside Enhancement Strategy that is 
required to ensure proper treatment of the setting of the whole of the Cambridge 
Southern Fringe (CSF/5).  Policy CSF/5 also proposes a Country Park (Trumpington 
Meadows) alongside the River Cam between Grantchester Road (Trumpington) and 
Hauxton Mill.  The section highlights the importance of Trumpington West to the 
setting of Cambridge, lying as it does on the major approach road from the south.  
Any extension of development into the Green Belt would need to create a new high 
quality developed edge which must be complemented by extensive landscape 
enhancement of the river and the creation of a new Country Park. The scale of 
development in the Cambridge Southern Fringe both within Cambridge City and 
South Cambridgeshire will require substantial mitigation measures over a wide area 

Page 8



of countryside to the south of the built-up area to mitigate the impact of development 
proposals.  
 
Part D: TRUMPINGTON WEST  
 

21. This is of necessity a more lengthy part of the Area Action Plan and provides 
objectives and policies for the development of the new neighbourhood at 
Trumpington West.  

   
D1  The Structure of Trumpington West and Concept Plan 
 

22. A policy (CSF/6) covering the physical structure of Trumpington West which is 
accompanied by a Concept Plan showing the distribution of its key components.  It 
addresses the main land uses, its services, facilities and infrastructure, the character, 
design and landscaping with particular reference to the importance of this entrance to 
Cambridge and its relationship with the River Cam valley. It will provide the basis for 
subsequent masterplans required by the AAP which can be prepared by developers 
or by the Council to show in more detail how the principles of the Structural Policy will 
be interpreted for the development of the area. 

 
D2  Housing 

 
23. The housing section includes objectives and policies which are specific to 

Trumpington West. CSF/7 provides for at least 600 dwellings to be built in South 
Cambs at an average density of at least 50 dwellings per hectare across the site, but 
aiming to achieve higher densities closer to Trumpington village centre and around 
public transport stops but with lower densities on the sensitive outer edge facing the 
River Cam. The actual density will be decided having regard to a design-led approach 
which ensures a quality environment. The chapter also highlights the Core Strategy 
policies which require approximately 50% of the housing to be in the various forms of 
Affordable Housing; and for housing mix in market housing of 50% with 1 and 2 
bedrooms; 25% with 3 bedrooms; and 25% with 4 or more bedrooms.  

 
D3 Employment 
 

24. Policy CSF/8 provides for small-scale employment development within the primarily 
residential development, in order to achieve an appropriate mix of uses. It notes that 
development for employment will be subject to Policy EM/1 of the Core Strategy 
which restricts development to that which can demonstrate a clear need to be located 
in the area, to serve local needs, or contribute to the continued success of the 
Cambridge Sub-Region as a centre of high technology and research. 

 
D4  Community Facilities, Leisure, Arts and Culture, including Community 
Development 

 
25. This section addresses the needs of the new community at Trumpington West in 

terms of community facilities, leisure, arts and culture and community development. 
Policy CSF/9 requires a detailed assessment of the need for these services and 
facilities together with a strategy for their delivery, including the provision of 
Community Development Workers. It also requires the development to make a 

Page 9



proportional contribution to their provision. They will need to be accessible in 
accordance with a masterplan, and may be located within Cambridge City Council’s 
part of the development. The policy also addresses the need for public art to be 
provided through the development of a public art strategy.  

 
D5 Transport 
 

26. Policy CSF/10 sets out the need for adequate highway infrastructure to be provided 
to serve the development at Trumpington West, including the need to ensure that 
there will be sufficient highway capacity on Hauxton Road to serve all stages of the 
development such that am peak traffic queuing outside of school holidays between 
Shelford Road and M11 would not be materially worse than conditions prevailing at 
the time of submission of the first planning application. It provides for access to the 
existing road network to be achieved by two accesses onto Hauxton Road, one of 
which will be aligned so that it will connect to the Hauxton Road / Addenbrooke’s Link 
Road junction which will lie in Cambridge City Council’s area. The other access could 
involve the relocation of the existing Waitrose access. It also addresses the need to 
mitigate the impact of traffic on nearby communities by funding traffic management 
measures and for appropriate landscaping of the new road infrastructure so that it 
integrates into the existing landscape character. 

 
27. Policy CSF/11 sets out the requirements for public transport, and the requirements for 

a network of cycle, pedestrian and horse-riding routes. It is complemented by the 
minimum cycle parking requirements and maximum car parking standards which are 
as set out in the Cambridge City Local Plan and included in the Area Action Plan, 
which will apply to the whole of the new developments taking place in the Southern 
Fringe in both Councils’ areas. 

 
D6 Landscape 
 

28. This section deals with the landscaping requirements for the development at 
Trumpington West. Policy CSF/12 requires developers to prepare a landscape 
strategy in order to achieve a high quality landscaped development. It also requires a 
strategy to be prepared to address construction spoil and the retention of existing 
landscape features in order to create a mature landscape at an early stage in the 
development. 

 
29. Policy CSF/13 puts forward the principle for a series of Green Fingers to be created 

into and through the urban area, with water as a central feature. The policy also 
addresses the need for landscaping to be of high quality with open spaces which are 
sympathetic to local landscape character. 

 
30. Policy CSF/14 sets out the landscaping requirements to link Trumpington West to the 

wider countryside, particularly with reference to new roads linking the urban extension 
to the existing road network and the need for all open spaces to form a network of 
connected green spaces. 

 

Page 10



D7  Biodiversity    
 
31. This section aims to secure a net increase in biodiversity as a result of the 

development.  Policy CSF/15 requires a full ecological survey of the areas in South 
Cambs around and adjacent to Addenbrooke’s, Clay Farm, Royal Showground, 
Glebe Farm and the Bell School and for the site at Trumpington West together with its 
surroundings. The Policy also requires the developers to prepare a strategy for the 
protection and enhancement of biodiversity.  

 
32. It also provides for Green Corridors to be continued beyond the urban extensions by 

enhanced landscaping, planting and the creation of wildlife habitats to provide links to 
larger scale wildlife habitats further afield including Nine Wells, the Gog Magog Down, 
Wandlebury, the River Cam corridor, Coton Country Park and Wicken Fen. 

 
D8  Archaeology and Heritage 

 
33. Policy CSF/16 requires a full survey, assessment and evaluation of the site at 

Trumpington West to inform the design of any development. The section notes that 
the archaeology policies of the Core Strategy will apply and that the strategies set out 
in the landscape section will be the main means of protecting and enhancing the 
important heritage built environment of Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas of 
nearby villages. 

 
D9  Recreation 

 
34. Policy CSF/17 provides for the Cambridge City Local Plan Outdoor Play Space and 

Informal Open Space standards to apply to the whole of the Cambridge Southern 
Fringe. It also includes a requirement that a strategy for formal sports provision be 
prepared for approval by the local planning authority and that the requirements of the 
strategy will be funded by the development.  It goes on to set out the need for a Play 
Strategy for the Trumpington West development. 

 
35. The final part of the policy covers the phasing and management of provision. 
 
36. Policy CSF/18 requires the development of a strategy to improve public access 

opportunities between the urban extensions of the Southern Fringe and the valuable 
recreational areas at Wandlebury and Gog Magog Downs, along the River Cam 
Corridor, the proposed country park at Cambridge East and at the Cambridge 
Preservation Society’s proposals for the Coton area. 

 
D10  Land Drainage, Water Conservation, Foul Drainage and Sewage Disposal 

 
37. Policy CSF/19 deals with land drainage, water conservation, foul drainage and 

sewage disposal. Provision will be made for a sustainable drainage system for 
surface water disposal comprising a series of underground cells and pipes and 
surface water channels feeding down to water holding features forming ponds in 
Trumpington Meadows.  Water will only be released into the surrounding water 
courses at a rate no greater than if the site was undeveloped.  The policy includes 
criteria for foul drainage requiring that sufficient sewage treatment capacity exists for 
all stage of development, that any receiving sewage treatment works has sufficient 
capacity to ensure that untreated sewage is not discharged into any watercourse and 

Page 11



that treated water will not exacerbate flood risk in any receiving water courses. The 
policy also sets a target of at least a 25% reduction as a result of water 
conservation/efficiency measures compared to a development with no such 
measures.  The policy concludes with seeking to ensure the most effective 
maintenance and management of all water bodies and watercourses. 

 
D11  Telecommunications 
 

38. Policy CSF/20 deals with the importance of ensuring that infrastructure can respond 
to changes in technology over the period of the development.  The development of a 
new urban extension provides the opportunity to ensure that all telecommunications 
infrastructure is designed and installed as an integral part of the development. 

 
D12  An Exemplar of Sustainability 
 

39. Policy CSF/21 deals with the opportunities for Trumpington West to include projects 
which are exemplars of sustainable practice. This will involve building a proportion of 
the development using cutting edge technologies that fully address sustainability 
issues and minimise any environmental impact by pushing at the boundaries of the 
proven technology available at the time each exemplar project comes forward.  

 
D13  Waste 

 
40. Waste issues are dealt with by the County Council and the AAP cannot include 

policies for waste. The AAP highlights the policies in the Structure Plan and Waste 
Local Plan to ensure readers are aware of all parts of the development plan.  

 
Part E:  DELIVERING THE CAMBRIDGE SOUTHERN FRINGE 

 
 E1  Phasing and Implementation 
 
41. The Draft Area Action Plan includes a construction strategy whose objective is to 

minimise and mitigate the impact of the development including the principle of 
recycling construction waste within the site.   Policy CSF/22 seeks to control site 
accesses for construction vehicles which for Trumpington West should be from 
Hauxton Road outside the built-up area of Trumpington, while for the developments 
elsewhere in the Southern Fringe within Cambridge City Council’s area they will not 
be permitted in the countryside within South Cambridgeshire.  Storage compounds, 
plant and machinery will be located and contained to avoid any adverse impacts on 
existing and new residents and businesses.  Developers will be required to be bound 
by the ‘Considerate Contractors Scheme’ which governs such matters as hours of 
working.  A Spoil strategy is also required which requires all spoil to be 
accommodated on site, part of which may be used to create a landscaped area 
alongside the M11 to protect Trumpington West and Trumpington Meadows Country 
Park from traffic noise. 

 
42. Policy CSF/23 requires all development in the Cambridge Southern Fringe in both 

Councils’ areas (Trumpington West, Glebe Farm, Clay Farm, Showground, 
Addenbrookes and The Bell School Site) to contribute to a Countryside Enhancement 
Strategy for the Cambridge Southern Fringe. 

Page 12



 
43. Policy CSF/24 requires a sustainable approach to construction with recycling of 

building materials from redundant buildings within the Southern Fringe as a local 
source of hardcore and other building materials. 

 
44. Policy CSF/25 sets out the requirement for management strategies for services, 

facilities, landscape and infrastructure. Landownership for these uses should be as 
simple as possible, preferably in a single ownership to avoid fragmentation.  In 
particular, there should be a single agreed management strategy covering recreation, 
landscape and biodiversity.  

 
45. Timing and order of service provision is dealt with in Policy CSF/26 setting out the 

need for the planning permission to include a legal agreement with a schedule of 
services and facilities to be funded by the developer and a timetable for their 
provision. 

 
E2  Planning Obligations 

 
46. This section defines the guiding principle for the planning obligations package for the 

Cambridge Southern Fringe albeit that funding from all sources will need to be 
maximised.  Policy CSF/27 links their provision, which is needed to make the scheme 
acceptable in planning terms. The section contains a list of the currently known 
services, facilities and infrastructure requirements and the strategies which will 
needed in order for the list to be finalised before planning permission can be granted. 

 
Financial Implications 

 
47. The cost of progressing the LDF is set out in the Council’s budget.  
 

Legal Implications 
 
48. The Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 imposes a statutory duty to 

prepare a Local Development Framework and to keep it up to date. 
 

Staffing Implications 
 
49. The programme for the LDF has been compiled having regard to the staffing 

resources that the Council can commit to planning policy preparation in the context of 
wider pressures for the early delivery of the development strategy set out in the 
Structure Plan.   

 
Risk Management Implications 

 
50. The AAP is a key Development Plan Document within the LDF.  Given the imperative 

from the Regional Planning Guidance and the Structure Plan that an early start must 
be made on the increased rate of development in the Cambridge Sub-region, it is 
important that the District Council, as the plan-making authority, is able to ensure that 
development takes place consistent with the LDF.  If the LDF is not in place at an 
early stage there is the risk of developments being determined by the development 
control and appeal process.  

Page 13



Consultations 
 
51. The Preferred Options Reports that guided preparation of the draft documents have 

been the subject of extensive public participation. 
 

Recommendations 
 
52. Prior to final approval on 9th May 2005, Council is recommended to: 
 

a. authorise the emerging policy approach for the Cambridge Southern Fringe 
Area Action Plan to be subjected to independent sustainability / strategic 
environmental assessment; and 

b. delegate to the Planning Portfolio Holder any material changes resultant from 
further information and to the Director of Development Services authority to 
approve any minor editing changes. 

 
 
Background Papers: the following background papers were used in the preparation of this 
report:  
 
Core Strategy Preferred Options Report, SCDC, October 2004 
Cambridge City Redeposit Draft Local Plan 2004 
Cambridge Southern Fringe Area Action Plan, Preferred Options Report, SCDC/Cambridge 
City Council, October 2004. 
Representations received in response to the above documents. 
Agenda and Minutes of the meeting of the Council, 11th February 2005. 
 
 

 
 
Contact Officer:  Keith Miles –Planning Policy Manager 

Telephone: (01954) 713181 
 

Page 14


